Public Document Pack

AGENDA
LEISURE AND COMMUNITY POLICY
DEVELOPMENT AND REVIEW PANEL
Date:

Wednesday, 24 July 2013

Time:

6:00 pm

Venue:

Collingwood Room - Civic Offices

Members:
Councillor

Miss S M Bell (Chairman)

Councillor

M J Ford, JP (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors

Mrs P M Bryant
N R Gregory
T G Knight
Mrs S Pankhurst
R H Price, JP

Deputies:

Mrs K Mandry
Mrs K K Trott
D M Whittingham

-2-

1.

Apologies for Absence

2.

Minutes (Pages 1 - 4)
To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Leisure and
Community Policy Development and Review Panel held on 15 May 2013.

3.

Chairman's Announcements

4.

Declarations of Interest and Disclosures or Advice or Directions
To receive any declarations of interest from members in accordance with Standing
Orders and the Council’s Code of Conduct and disclosures of advice or directions
received from Group Leaders or Political Groups, in accordance with the Council’s
Constitution.

5.

Deputations
To receive any deputations of which notice has been lodged.

6.

Presentation - Countryside Sites Nature Conservation
To receive a presentation from the Head of Leisure and Community and
Countryside Officer on countryside sites nature conservation.

7.

Leisure Strategy Review (Pages 5 - 34)
To consider a report by the Director of Community which presents the latest revised
strategy document reflecting the changes and achievements that have occurred in
2012/13.

8.

Portchester MUGA - Results of Consultation (Pages 35 - 50)
To consider a report by the Director of Community regarding the outcome of the
public consultation on the possible provision of a MUGA (Multi-Use Games Area)
facility at Portchester Community Centre.

9.

Proposals to Commemorate the Centenary of WW1 and the 70th Anniversary
of D Day (Pages 51 - 62)
To consider a report by the Director of Streetscene which sets out proposals for
commemorating the centenary of the start of World War 1 and the 70th anniversary
of D Day.

10. Review of Work Programme for 2013/14 (Pages 63 - 66)
To consider a report by the Director of Community which reviews the Panel’s work
programme for 2013/14.
P GRIMWOOD
Chief Executive Officer
Civic Offices
www.fareham.gov.uk

-3-

16 July 2013

For further information please contact:
Democratic Services, Civic Offices, Fareham, PO16 7AZ
Tel:01329 236100
democraticservices@fareham.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 2

Minutes of the
Leisure and Community Policy
Development and Review Panel
(to be confirmed at the next meeting)
Date:

Wednesday, 15 May 2013

Venue:

Collingwood Room - Civic Offices

PRESENT:
Councillor Miss S M Bell, (Chairman)

Councillors:

N R Gregory, T G Knight, Mrs S Pankhurst and R H Price, JP

Also
Present:

Councillor Mrs C L A Hockley, Executive Member for Leisure
and Community (Minute 6)

Page 1

Leisure and Community
Policy Development and
Review Panel

1.

-2-

15 May 2013

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Mrs Bryant and
Councillor M J Ford, JP, (Vice-Chairman.

2.

MINUTES
It was AGREED that the minutes of the Leisure and Community Policy
Development and Review Panel meeting held on 6 March 2013 be confirmed
and signed as a correct record.

3.

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
The Chairman thanked officers for arranging the member visit to Fareham
Leisure Centre, the Park Lane site and Fareham Bowls Club, which had taken
place that afternoon. Councillor Price and Councillor Mrs Hockley, (Executive
Portfolio holder for Leisure and Community) passed on their apologies that
they had been unable to attend the visit.

4.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND DISCLOSURES OR ADVICE OR
DIRECTIONS
There were no declarations of interest made at the meeting.

5.

DEPUTATIONS
There were no deputations made at this meeting.

6.

PRESENTATION - INTRODUCTION TO THE ROLE OF THE LEISURE AND
COMMUNITY POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND REVIEW
PANEL
(INTRODUCTION TO KEY STAFF, ACHIEVEMENTS IN 2012/13,
CHALLENGES AND PRIORITIES FOR 2013/14)
The Panel received a presentation from the Director of Community, Head of
Leisure and Community and Officers within the Department of Leisure and
Community, which provided an overview of the wide range of services
provided by each of the teams within the section, the main achievements for
2012/13 and projects to be undertaken in 2013/14 and beyond. Particular
mention was made about the success of the two significant events of 2012, the
Queens Jubilee and the Olympic Torch Relay.
The presentation informed members about the work of the following four
teams:•
•
•
•

Leisure Development
Community Development
Ferneham Hall
Countryside Service

It was noted that the strategic issues which would have an impact on the
service in future years included:Page 2

Leisure and Community
Policy Development and
Review Panel

-3-

15 May 2013

•

Welborne - Planning for the community, sport and green infrastructure in
the new community;

•

Green Infrastructure - Strategy to mitigate impact of new development on
Solent Special Protection Area;

•

Locks Heath District Centre Redevelopment; and

•

Community Infrastructure Levy - Impact on open spaces improvement
programme

At the invitation of the Chairman Councillor Mrs Hockley addressed members
during the discussion on this item.
The Panel was invited to ask questions or comment on matters covered in the
presentation and suggest any items for inclusion in the Panel's future work
programme.
It was AGREED that:-

7.

(a)

The Director of Community, Head of Leisure and Community and
officers be thanked for a very comprehensive and informative
presentation; and

(b)

Officers be congratulated for their hard work and effort especially during
what proved to be a very busy year.

LEISURE AND COMMUNITY POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND REVIEW
PANEL WORK PROGRAMME FOR 2013/14 - REVIEW AND INITIAL
ENDORSEMENT
The Panel considered a report by the Director of Community regarding the
Panel's proposed work programme for 2013/14. The following items were
suggested for inclusion in the forthcoming work programme either for
consideration at a specific meeting or as an item to be allocated to a future
meeting:•

Outcome of the consultation on Portchester MUGA - proposed to be
reported to the meeting on 24 July 2013;

•

Proposals for refurbishment of existing changing rooms, replacement
grounds maintenance store and other works at Bath Lane Recreation
Ground - to be reported to the meeting on 4 September 2013;

•

Review of Community Buildings - results of Titchfield CATS Area Needs
Assessment;

•

Hampshire County Council Review of Community Sector Funding; and

•

Update on the future of Westbury Manor Museum.
Page 3

Leisure and Community
Policy Development and
Review Panel

-4-

15 May 2013

In response to a proposal by Councillor Gregory that the Panel receive an
update report on the Fareham Park Project, members were informed that a
report on this matter was being submitted to the Executive and would therefore
not need to be added to the Panel's work programme.
It was AGREED that, subject to the revisions shown below, the Panel's work
programme for 2013/14 be approved:(a)

An item to consider the outcome of the consultation on Portchester
MUGA be added to the work programme for 24 July 2013;

(b)

Proposals for refurbishment of existing changing rooms, replacement
grounds maintenance store and other works at Bath Lane Recreation
Ground be added to the work programme for 4 September 2013;

(c)

Review of Community Buildings - results of Titchfield CATS Area Needs
Assessment, be added to the work programme as an unallocated item;

(d)

Hampshire County Council Review of Community Sector Funding be
added to the work programme as an unallocated item; and

(e)

Update on the future of Westbury Manor Museum be added to the work
programme as an unallocated item.

(The meeting started at 6.00 pm
and ended at 7.40 pm).

Page 4

Agenda Item 7

Report to
Leisure and Community Policy
Development and Review Panel
Date

24 July 2013

Report of:

Director of Community

Subject:

LEISURE STRATEGY REVIEW

SUMMARY
The Leisure Strategy was last presented to the Panel in May 2012. This report
contains a copy of the latest revised strategy document that reflects the changes and
achievements that have occurred in 2012/13.

RECOMMENDATION
The Executive adopt the revised Leisure Strategy for 2013 to 2018, as set out in
Appendix A.

L&C-130724-r02-mbo.docx

Page 5

-2INTRODUCTION
1. The Leisure Strategy sets out the vision and key priorities for the next five years and
contains a series of actions that will primary focus for the Leisure and Community
team.
2. The previous version of the strategy was presented to the Community Policy
Development and Review Panel on 16 May 2012. Since then there have been a
number of changes and emerging issues which have impacted on the service and
these are summarised in the report along with the main achievements over the last
year. A copy of the Leisure Strategy 2013 to 2018 is contained in Appendix A.
EMERGING ISSUES
3. The Diamond Jubilee and London 2012 Olympic celebrations ensured that 2012 was a
memorable year. The events and activities organised to mark these occasions
coincided with the culmination of the Council's sports development function. Funding
for the post of Football Development Officer expired in September 2012 and the
revenue budget to support this and the sports development activities were withdrawn
as part of the efficiency savings programme.
4. A decision by the County Council to withdraw funding for community schools resulted
in the management of Lockswood Community Centre being handed back to the
Council from Brookfield School in April 2012. This resulted in an added financial
pressure for the Council as the centre was operating at a budget shortfall in the region
of £60k. A significant amount of work has been undertaken to establish a charitable
body to take over the management of the facility. This arrangement has the potential
to eradicate the revenue budget deficit and provide a sustainable operation for the
future. However, no long term decisions can be made until the future of the Locks
Heath Shopping Centre development is decided.
5. Preparation has begun on planning for the transfer of 33 hectares of land at Coldeast
into the Councils ownership. This will involve plans to construct new community
infrastructure including the possibility of a swimming pool. There are also large areas of
woodland and parkland that need to be prepared and maintained for public access.
The later will be the responsibility of the Countryside Ranger Service who will need the
requisite resources to ensure this process can be managed effectively.
6. Another significant project involves the renewal of the Fareham Leisure Centre
management contract that expires in May 2015. Consideration is being given to the
future management arrangements that include capital investment in the pool and
changing areas as part of the new agreement.
7. The review of community buildings in the Fareham Town CAT area highlighted a
strategic need for a community centre located in the town centre area. Work is now
underway to evaluate potential sites in the town centre and establish the build costs to
inform a master plan.
8. Hampshire County Council's reorganisation of youth provision has resulted in a lack of
resources to deliver open access youth provision across the Borough. This has had a
detrimental impact on both the management and the range of services provided in
Council owned youth centres, particularly at Genesis and X-perience (in Trinity Street).
The future management arrangements of these facilities will need to be considered to
L&C-130724-r02-mbo.docx

Page 6

-3determine how best to meet the current demand for youth provision in Council -owned
buildings and other local facilities.
9. Hampshire County Council is currently in the process of reviewing both the Museum
and Arts Service and the funding arrangements for Council for Voluntary Services,
Community Action Fareham. These reviews are scheduled to conclude in 2013 but in
both cases it is likely to impact on the way these services are delivered in the future.
10. The 2012 Indoor Sports Study and Playing Pitch Strategy considered the related need
for provision in the new community at Welborne and the results have been included in
the master planning work. In addition there is a requirement to identify opportunities to
mitigate the impacts of the increase in population from the Welborne development on
the Solent Special Protection Area. This will require identifying new green infrastructure
and improvements in existing infrastructure to help mitigate the impact.
11. In May 2013 the Council implemented new arrangements for the Community
Infrastructure Levy (CIL). This will largely replace the provision of section 106
agreements relating to new development. The Open Space Supplementary Planning
Guidance has been very effective at collecting contributions for providing new and
improved infrastructure for outdoor sport, play areas and open space. In future funding
is likely to be much harder to come by as open space provision competes for funding
with other infrastructure needs such as highways, health and education.
MAIN ACHIEVEMENTS
12. A brief summary of the main achievements for Leisure & Community services in
2012/13 are set out in the following section.
13. Olympic Torch Relay - On Sunday 15 July 1000,s of people descended on Fareham
Town Centre to celebrate the arrival of the Olympic Torch. The event was the
culmination of a series of events that took place across the Borough to celebrate the
London 2012 Olympic Games.
14. Queens Diamond Jubilee Celebrations - Community events were organised over
the spring bank holiday weekend to celebrate the Queens Diamond Jubilee. The
events were held in the four parks that were awarded QE II Fields in Trust status and
included the unveiling of a stone and plaque to mark the occasion.
15. Portchester Community Centre - The construction of a new £2m community centre
to serve the residents of Portchester was completed in December 2012 and opened in
January 2013. The old dilapidated community centre building has been demolished
along with the old tennis courts and additional car parking is being created.
16. Wicor Pavilion - The construction of a new £700k 6 team changing room pavilion was
completed in December 2012 ahead of schedule and was opened for use in January
2013. The facility was jointly funded by the Football Foundation in partnership with the
Council and AFC Portchester.
17. Lockswood Community Centre - The management of the Lockswood Community
Centre at Centre Way, Locks Heath, transferred from the Brookfield Community
School to Fareham Borough Council on 1 April 2012. Six individuals from groups who
use the Lockswood Community Centre have set up a charitable organisation with the
L&C-130724-r02-mbo.docx

Page 7

-4aim of taking on the management of the facility. The group have developed a business
plan that has been approved by the Executive and are in the final stages of agreeing
the arrangements to take over the management of the building.
18. Assets of Community Value - Under the Localism Act 2011, voluntary and
community organisations and parish councils can nominate an asset to be included in
a ‘list of assets of community value’. A new procedure for nominating such assets has
been developed and published on the Council's website.
19. Review of Community Buildings - The review of Community Buildings is a corporate
priority and the third phase of the process, the Fareham CAT area needs assessment
and draft master plan, was completed in March 2012.
20. Fareham Park Project - Fareham Park has been identified as one of the most
deprived areas of the Borough and nationally, as evidenced by national deprivation
indices. Following the demise of the Local Strategic Partnership (LSP) in 2010, the
Council adopted the project as a corporate priority with the aim of reducing deprivation
and poverty in Fareham Park. A new steering group has been formed to lead the
project and a Project Officer appointed on a 3 year contract. £17,500 "Have Your Say"
funding has already been secured and work is currently being undertaken to organise
community event to help determine how this money will be allocated.
21. Indoor Sport Study & Playing Pitch Strategy - These two key studies were
completed in 2012 and will inform the future provision of sports pitches and indoor
sports facilities in the Borough.
22. Play Area Improvements - New play areas were installed at Laurel Gardens and
Locks Heath Park.
23. Tennis Court Improvements - Improvements to the court surface and fencing was
undertaken at Locks Heath and Titchfield Tennis Courts.
24. Matched Funding Grants - The Council awarded matched funding grants to the
following groups to provide new and improved sport and community facilities in the
Borough; Titchfield Boxing Club £25,000, Fareham Bowls Club, £25,000, Sarisbury
Community Centre £7,500, Salmiakki Indoor Sports Centre £21,500 and Portchester
Community School All Weather Pitch £50,000.
25. Bath Lane Pavillion - Plans have been developed to refurbish the existing changing
rooms at Bath Lane which include the provision of a new club house for Fareham &
Crofton Cricket Club. The old dilapidated clubhouse will be demolished and a new
grounds maintenance store provided.
26. Community Action Fareham - SLA Review - Review completed and reported to
March Executive with decision to reduce funding by 4% and review again in 6 months
when results of County Council review of Council for Voluntary Services funding have
been finalised.
27. Play Ranger Service - The 3 year Play Ranger programme, funded by the Big
Lottery, came to an end in August 2012. The service was very popular with children
and young people across the borough, seeing record user figures for the service.

L&C-130724-r02-mbo.docx

Page 8

-528. Fareham Community Savers - The Council has developed local access to the
services of Hampshire credit union in partnership with First Wessex Housing
Association and the Southern Co-operative, this is the first year of a three year
initiative.
29. Broadlaw Walk - Support and guidance has been given to First Wessex and local
Broadlaw Community Volunteers to assist with the development of the new Broadlaw
Walk Community building and the sustainability of the project over the next three
years.
30. Safeguarding Policy - The current policy has been revised and updated to take
account of safeguarding arrangements and now includes provision for the welfare of
vulnerable adults in addition to children and young people.
31. Red Barn Allotments – Refurbishment of building including a new pitch roof, new
electrics and redecoration.
32. Linden Lea - Creation of Wildflower Meadow and successful Botanical Art event with
local school children.
33. South and South East in Bloom - Gold Award in large Town/City Category, also
Gold Awards for other Parks including Westbury Manor Garden, Sensory Garden,
Holly Hill and Warsash Common plus Green Flag Awards for Holly Hill and Sensory
Garden.
34. Roman Grove Cemetery - New entrance gates, pillars and walls.
35. Parks and Countryside Events - Successful programme of events organised across
the Borough.
RISK ASSESSMENT
36. There are no significant risk considerations in relation to this report.
CONCLUSION
37. The past year has seen a wide variety of high profile events and new community
facilities provided for residents and visitors to the borough to enjoy. The 2013-2018
Leisure Strategy provides an overview of what influences the demand for, and
provision of, leisure and cultural facilities and activities in the Borough of Fareham.
38. The strategy document contained in Appendix A includes an action plan that sets out
the programme for delivering activities and new leisure and cultural facilities over the
next five years.
Background Papers:
None
Appendices: Appendix A - Leisure Strategy 2013 - 2018

L&C-130724-r02-mbo.docx

Page 9

-6Reference Papers:
Leisure & Community Policy Development & Review Panel - 16 May 2012 - Leisure
Strategy Review.

Enquiries:
For further information on this report please contact Mark Bowler, Head of Leisure and
Community (Ext 4420 )

L&C-130724-r02-mbo.docx

Page 10

Appendix A

Fareham Borough Council's
Leisure Strategy
2013-18
Leisure Opportunities for Health & for Fun

Page 11

Contents
Introduction............................................................................................................... 3
What is the Context of the Strategy? ...................................................................... 5
Corporate Strategy 2011-2017 ................................................................................. 5
Resources ................................................................................................................. 6
Partnerships.............................................................................................................. 6
Non Priorities ............................................................................................................ 6
Equality & Diversity .................................................................................................. 6
Local Influences ....................................................................................................... 7
Fareham Sustainable Community Strategy 2010-2020 . ....................................... 7
Fareham Local Development Framework (LDF) – Core Strategy 2011 ............... 7
Sport Hampshire & IOW Strategy 2010-2013 - ....................................................... 8
Hampshire’s Children and Young People’s Plan 2009-2012 -............................... 8
Sport England: A Sporting Habit for Life (2012-2017) - ......................................... 9
Sport England Strategy (2011/12 – 2014/15) - ....................................................... 9
What does the Council aim to achieve? ............................................................... 12
Overarching Strategic Objectives ......................................................................... 12
Scope of the Strategy ............................................................................................. 12
Parks & Open Spaces ............................................................................................ 13
Foreshore ................................................................................................................ 14
Culture & Heritage .................................................................................................. 15
Community Development ...................................................................................... 16
How is the service financed? ................................................................................ 18
What is the plan of action for 2013 and beyond? ................................................ 23

2
Page 12

Introduction
Leisure activities are an important part of people’s lives, providing
opportunities for personal fulfilment and a healthy lifestyle, while promoting
family cohesion and community identity. They are important to the quality of
life in the Borough of Fareham and make a significant contribution to the
Council's vision; "Fareham, a prosperous, safe and attractive place to live and
work".
A high quality natural and built environment with a good range of facilities
helps raise the profile of the Borough to residents and visitors alike which also
helps to promote local identity. The Leisure Strategy sets out the Council’s
commitment to address the needs of people who live and work in the Borough
and to facilitate the contribution of private, public and voluntary providers of
leisure and cultural activities. It also recognises that leisure and cultural
opportunities cross local authority boundaries, reflecting the range of
opportunities available in the sub region.
Through this strategy, Fareham Borough Council will facilitate community
involvement in the development of leisure and cultural initiatives and projects
that will secure high quality facilities for local people. This will involve
innovative methods of service delivery, maximising funding opportunities and
partnership working.
The aim being that the Borough of Fareham will continue to be a place where
people enjoy their local environment and have an opportunity to participate in
a range of quality leisure and cultural opportunities.

Councillor Mrs Connie Hockley
Executive Member for Leisure & Community

3
Page 13

What's it like in Fareham?
The Borough of Fareham
Fareham is located in an area of some 30 square miles along the south coast of
Hampshire between Portsmouth and Southampton. The population of 111,500 is
expected to grow by 5.4 per cent over the next 20 years with a growing number in the
population aged 45 or more. Black and minority ethnic groups make up a small
proportion of the population in comparison to the rest of the south east region. A new
development of up to 6,000 homes, commercial buildings and community facilities is
planned to start in 2016 in an area to the north of Fareham known as Welborne.
Within Fareham's boundaries there are six nationally important sites of special
scientific interest, 92 sites of importance for nature conservation and four nature
reserves. The Borough has many historic buildings, 13 conservation areas, nearly
600 listed buildings plus seven historic parks and gardens of regional or local
importance. Residents have said consistently in national and local surveys that they
are satisfied with the local area as a place to live.
Fareham is a thriving business area with low unemployment. The proportion of
Fareham's working age population that are in work is higher than both the regional
and national rates and the average annual salary for a full time worker living in
Fareham is significantly higher than national average earnings.
Fareham is a safe and healthy place compared to many other parts of the country.
The total number of recorded crimes in Fareham has been falling in recent years.
Based upon the number of crimes recorded, Fareham's Community Safety
Partnership is the second best performing partnership in Hampshire and is in the top
quartile when compared to other similar authorities.
The health of people living in Fareham is generally good when compared to other
areas. Life expectancy is higher than the national average for men and women and
over the last 10 years, the rate of death from all causes, and early death rates from
cancer and from heart disease and stroke, has all fallen and remain lower than the
national average. Deprivation levels across the borough are generally very low.
However, there are pockets of deprivation where unemployment is much higher and
educational achievement is much lower when compared to other parts of the
Borough.

4
Page 14

What is the Context of the Strategy?
Corporate Strategy 2011-2017
The corporate strategy takes account of government priorities and the Council's
ongoing commitment to maintain and improve its services with limited and reducing
resources. The strategy includes a reduced number of priorities to provide a clear
focus on the most important issues that need to be addressed by the Council over
the next six years.
Vision
Fareham is a prosperous, safe and attractive place to live and work. This has not
happened by accident but by careful management and constant attention to our
environment and the needs of our communities. Our vision for Fareham's future is
based upon the assumption that residents want to preserve all that is good about
Fareham, whilst increasing prosperity and making it an even more inclusive and
attractive place to live and work.
Values
Everything we do is guided by a set of values which are shared by all elected
members and employees. These are:
•

Listening and being responsive to our customers;

•

Recognising and protecting the identity of existing settlements;

•

Enhancing prosperity and conserving all that is good;

•

Being efficient and effective and providing value for money;

•

Leading our communities and achieving beneficial change.

The corporate priorities and their associated priorities for improvement that relate to
the Leisure Strategy include the following:
To provide a reasonable range of leisure opportunities for health and fun so that
residents and visitors of all ages can socialise with other members of our
communities; participate in arts and entertainment activities; and improve their fitness
and health.
Our priorities for improvement are:
•

Provide community facilities at the Coldeast site to provide a swimming
pool, cemetery, allotments, parkland and sports pitches.

•

Implement findings of our review of community centres and sports pavilions
and modernise buildings as appropriate.

•

Develop new and improved parks, play area and sports facilities using
developer contributions and external funding.

5
Page 15

To build strong and inclusive communities by providing strategic leadership to
help bring together key partners and encourage them to improve services and
provide opportunities for residents of the borough. We will also give people greater
influence and power over the decisions that affect their lives and build more inclusive
communities by providing easy and affordable access to information and services
provided by the Council.
Our priorities for improvement are:
•

Providing support to the community through initiatives such as in the
Fareham Park Project.

Resources
Whilst the possibilities for providing leisure opportunities and for achieving positive
outcomes for individuals and communities are limitless, the resources available for
services are not. The impact of this strategy seeks to maximise the impact of modest
resources available to the Council by prioritising effort and striving for increased
efficiency. The focus will be to deliver improvements by identifying opportunities for
savings, reallocation of budgets, bidding for funding from external sources and
exploring ways of achieving better value for money within available resources. The
strategy acknowledges the limited resources available to the Council for the provision
of leisure and cultural services. In addition the unprecedented need to deliver
efficiency savings may impact on the ability to fully implement the action plan
Partnerships
The Council seeks to maximise the impact of its limited resources by working in
partnership with others wherever possible. The Council works in partnership with
voluntary, statutory and commercial organisations as well as relevant government
agencies to maximise the effectiveness of its work.
Non Priorities
There will always be more opportunities and possibilities for providing leisure and
cultural services than there are resources available. The Council is therefore clear
about what it does not consider to be a priority. The non priorities are identified in
part by taking into account existing provision in the Borough which is offered by other
commercial, voluntary and statutory organisations.
Currently these non priorities include promotion of Fareham as a tourist destination,
other than Fareham Shopping Centre, and promotion of the arts, other than the
activities that take place at Ferneham Hall. The Council does not deny the value of
these activities but does not plan to commit resources to delivering them directly.
Equality & Diversity
The aim is to make leisure and cultural activities within the Borough as accessible
and inclusive as practically possible for everyone irrespective of age, gender, ethnic
origin, financial situation or mobility. Access is meant not only in the physical sense
but also in terms of removing barriers such as cost, transport difficulties and the
factor of not even knowing what facilities are available.

6
Page 16

What else influences the strategy?
Local Influences
Fareham Sustainable Community Strategy 2010-2020 - The Council’s vision for
the Strategy is to make life better for the people of the Borough by working together
as partners and with local communities to achieve improvements in economic, social
and environmental wellbeing that would not otherwise happen. One key objective is
to encourage the provision of affordable, accessible leisure and community facilities
which will meet local needs. The priorities for health and well-being are to increase
physical activity across all age groups and to reduce levels of obesity.
Fareham Local Development Framework (LDF) – Core Strategy 2011 - The Core
Strategy is a key part of the Fareham LDF and will help to deliver the spatial
elements of Fareham’s Sustainable Community Strategy. The LDF is not a single
plan but a suite of documents which will be reviewed regularly to ensure they remain
current.
Green Spaces Study This is an evidence study produced to inform the LDF. It
describes the quantity and quality of open spaces in the Borough, including parks
and amenity open space, young persons' provision (including both children’s play
areas and youth related provision) and ‘accessible natural green spaces’ such as
woodlands and natural grasslands.
Fareham Indoor Sports Facilities Assessment 2012 - This factual report provides
a quantitative and qualitative audit based assessment of indoor sports facilities. It is
consistent with the National Planning Policy Framework in that it is a robust, up-todate assessment of the needs for indoor sports facilities and opportunities for new
provision. Specific deficiencies and surpluses are identified to inform what provision
is required.
Fareham Playing Pitch Study 2012 - This strategy covers the period 2012 -2026
and feeds into the Local Development Framework (LDF). The LDF sets out the
spatial strategy, policies and proposals, which will guide the future development and
use of land in the Borough of Fareham. The study includes the following:
•

An audit of the current levels of provision for outdoor sports, including
Synthetic Turf Pitches (STPs), in Fareham across all sectors.

•

The current demand from clubs and teams for the following sports;
Football, Cricket, Tennis, Bowls, Rugby Union, Hockey, Artificial Turf
Pitches (all sports)

•

The future demand (for the period 2015 - 2026 for both junior and adult
participation.

•

An assessment of supply and demand by Fareham Borough Councils
Community Action Teams (CATS) areas.

7
Page 17

Regional Influences
Sport Hampshire & IOW Strategy 2010-2013 - The vision for Sport Hampshire &
IOW County Sports Partnership is to inspire more people to be more active, more
often. The strategy has four strategic aims:
•
•

•

•

To inspire and sustain greater participation in physical activity and sport,
enabling all to fulfil their potential.
To support activity at all levels through the development of a quality
workforce; coaches, instructors, leaders, volunteers, officials and
administrators.
To plan strategically and provide a range of high quality, active
environments and appropriate facilities supporting introductory activities,
participation and performance sport.
To implement a strategic, coordinated approach to marketing and
communications, enabling information to be communicated more
effectively.

Hampshire’s Children and Young People’s Plan 2009-2012 - The Children and
Young People’s Plan (CYPP) is the key strategic plan for Hampshire’s Children’s
Trust, establishing priorities for the delivery of services to children, young people and
families. The vision of the plan is to make Hampshire a better place for children and
young people where all of them have the best possible start in life and are supported
by the whole community. In order to achieve this vision there are six priorities for
Hampshire:
•
•
•

•
•

•

Reducing the incidence and impact of poverty on the achievement and life
chances of children and young people.
Securing children and young people’s physical, spiritual, social, emotional and
mental health, promoting healthy lifestyles and reducing inequalities.
Providing opportunities to learn that raise children and young people’s
aspirations, encourage excellence and enable them to enjoy and achieve
beyond their expectations.
Ensuring that children and young people are safe and feel safe, enabling them
to build resilience and personal confidence.
Providing vocational, leisure and recreational activities that provide
opportunities for children and young people to experience success and make
a positive contribution.
Removing barriers to access, participation and achievement and not tolerating
discrimination and abuse.

8
Page 18

National Influences
Sport England: A Sporting Habit for Life (2012-2017) - In 2017, five years after the
Olympic Games, Sport England wants to have transformed sport in England so that it
is a habit for life for more people and a regular choice for the majority. The strategy
will:
• See more people taking on and keeping a sporting habit for life.
• Create more opportunities for young people.
• Nurture and develop talent.
• Provide the right facilities in the right places.
• Support local authorities and unlock local funding.
• Ensure real opportunities for communities.
Sport England Strategy (2011/12 – 2014/15) - The vision is for England to be a
world leading sporting nation where many more people choose to play sport. There
are five strategic themes including:
•
•
•
•
•

Maximise value from current National Governing Body (NGB) investment.
Places, People, Play.
Strategic direction and market intelligence.
Set criteria & support system for NGB 2013-17 investments.
Market development.

9
Page 19

What's happening in Fareham?
How healthy is Fareham?
The latest health profiles for Fareham were published in 2012. The following provides
a summary of the key facts:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•

The health of people in Fareham is generally better than the England
average.
Deprivation is lower than average, however about 1,900 children live in
poverty.
Life expectancy for both men and women is higher than the England
average.
Life expectancy is 5.3 years lower for men in the most deprived areas of
Fareham than in the least deprived areas.
Over the last 10 years, all cause mortality rates have fallen.
Early death rates from cancer and from heart disease and stroke have
fallen and are better than the England average.
About 15.7% of Year 6 children are classified as obese, lower than the
average for England.
Levels of teenage pregnancy and breast feeding initiation are better than
the England average.
The estimated level of adult smoking is better than the England average.
Rates of sexually transmitted infections, road injuries and deaths, smoking
related deaths and hospital stays for alcohol related harm are better than
the England average.
The incidence of malignant melanoma is higher than average.
Priorities in Fareham include alcohol disease and cancer, alcohol and
healthy ageing.

Source: Department of Health. © Crown Copyright 2012

How active is Fareham?
 22.6% of adults in Fareham regularly take part in sport and active recreation
compared to the national average of 21.8%.
 44.7% of adults do no sport or active recreation at all.
 57.8% of adults say they want to start playing sport or do a bit more.
 27% are members of sports clubs, compared to 23.3% nationally.
 The most popular sports in Fareham for adults are: swimming, gym, cycling,
athletics and football.
Source: Sport England Active People survey (APS)

10
Page 20

How satisfied are Fareham residents?
The most recent resident's survey was carried out in 2011 and indicated the following
levels of satisfaction:
 84.8% were satisfied with the children's play areas in the Borough;
 87% were satisfied with the Borough's community centres;
 80.4% were satisfied with their local sports facilities including pitches, tennis
courts and bowling green's;
 94.3% of people were happy with Fareham Leisure Centre; and
 95.1% of respondents were either very or fairly happy with Ferneham Hall, 6%
more than in 2009.

Has Fareham got adequate sports facilities?
The Sport England Facilities Planning Model (FPM) indicates that there are 12 sports
halls in the borough which equates to approximately 4 courts per 10,000 people. This
is equal to county, regional and national levels.
When comparing to neighbouring areas, Fareham is in the middle. Gosport and
Portsmouth only have 2 and 3.5 courts respectively per 10,000 people. However,
Eastleigh and Winchester have 4.5 and 5 courts respectively per 10,000 people.
The Sport England FPM for swimming pools indicates there is only one pool site in
Fareham which contains two pools, Fareham Leisure Centre. Fareham does not
compare favourably to national, regional, county or neighbouring area figures
regarding waterspace per 10,000 people. Fareham has 3.8 sq metre of water per
1000 population. This compares to 11.8 sq metre per 1000 in Hampshire, 13.8 in the
South East and 12.6 in England as a whole.
Fareham also has the lowest amount of waterspace per 1000 compared to
neighbouring areas Winchester (16.6), Gosport (9.7), Eastleigh (9.5) and Portsmouth
(13.7). The audit excludes facilities that are deemed to be either for private use, too
small or there is a lack of information, particularly relating to hours of use.
The Sport England FPM for Artificial Grass Pitches (AGP) indicates there are 3 public
facilities in the Borough located at The Henry Court Community College, Warsash
Wasps Football Club and Portchester Community School.

11
Page 21

What does the Council aim to achieve?
Vision
Access to good quality leisure opportunities that let residents, visitors and people
who work in the Borough enjoy the local environment, pursue recreational interests,
keep healthy and participate in community events.
Overarching Strategic Objectives
There are key overarching strategic principles, which relate to every element of the
strategy, these are set out at the very start of this document as follows:o Where feasible, to ensure that all leisure provision in the Borough is of a high
standard.
o To work in partnership with voluntary, statutory and commercial agencies to
provide new and improved leisure opportunities.
o To focus resources on priority improvements, particularly those identified in
consultation with local residents and in areas where this is a deficiency in
provision.
o To seek to reduce barriers to participation e.g. access, transportation, price, lack
of awareness etc.
o To empower local community and voluntary groups and clubs to meet their own
identified needs.
Scope of the Strategy
The Leisure Strategy is structured around the following core elements:
• Parks and open spaces
• Foreshore
• Sport and recreation
• Culture and heritage
• Community development
• Children’s play and activities for young people

12
Page 22

Parks & Open Spaces
The total area of open space in the Borough is c. 318 hectares. This includes a
variety of landscapes including the coastal areas, countryside, woodlands, recreation
grounds, nature reserves, informal open space in urban areas, local parks, verges
and roundabouts, equipped play areas, churchyards, cemeteries and allotments.
Fareham Borough also contains 4 nature reserves, Titchfield Haven, Hook-withWarsash, Kites Croft and Swanwick. In recent years, both Holly Hill Woodland Park
and Warsash Common have obtained National Nature Reserve (NNR) status.
There are eight cemeteries and a number of churchyards that are the responsibility of
the Council together with the provision of a sympathetic and efficient burial service.
Although there is sufficient burial space in the Borough, the residents in Western
Wards have limited choice as Holly Hill Cemetery is full. Opportunities for a new
cemetery are being investigated as part of the re-development of the former Coldeast
Hospital site.
Fareham has a very dedicated volunteer base and many areas of work would not be
possible without them. Fareham in Bloom Volunteers work extensively in
administering the Council's own 'In Bloom' competition, assisting with events and the
Council's entry to South and South East in Bloom. There are also considerable
contributions made by the 'Friends of Holly Hill' and other conservation groups in
Fareham who undertake works in parks such as Holly Hill Woodland Park and
Warsash Common. Work by volunteers has contributed to the successful
achievement in obtaining Green Flag Awards in two of the Council's parks.
Due to the high demand for allotments within the Borough there are limited plots
available. The provision of allotments is the only statutory Council leisure related
activity. An Allotment Strategy has been developed with the aim of identifying
opportunities to increase the current provision in order to meet demand; this includes
identifying areas where additional allotments could be accommodated if funding was
available.

Parks & Open Spaces Strategic Objectives
 Protect and enhance areas of green and open space in the Borough which are
of “special biodiversity interest”.
 Ensure that the planning policy of the Council seeks to protect and enhance
areas of green and open space.
 Maintain and enhance the diverse range of open space throughout the Borough
to meet the needs of the local community.
 Employ and promote sustainable management practices in the maintenance and
development of Council owned open space.
 Seek solutions to address the shortfalls in accessible green space, as identified
in the Green Spaces Study, in particular opportunities in the Welborne
development.
13
Page 23

 Encourage local community volunteer involvement in the management of
foreshore, countryside and woodlands.
 Seek opportunities to address the shortfall in allotment provision.
 Increase cemetery provision in the West of the Borough.

Foreshore
The coastline within the Borough falls into four areas comprising the northern shores
of Portsmouth Harbour, including Fareham Lake and the lower Wallington River; the
Hill Head seafront; the largely undeveloped coast between Meon Shore and Hook;
and the eastern bank of the lower and upper River Hamble. Much of the shoreline is
of International Nature Conservation importance and is subject to special controls.
Traditional activities that take place on the foreshore include walking, swimming and
boating with angling and seafood gathering also popular. Water sports such as wind
and kite surfing and jet skiing are increasing in popularity and the foreshore around
Hill Head attracts kite surfers in numbers when the conditions are favourable.
Foreshore Strategic Objectives
 Protect and where possible enhance the areas of the foreshore in the Borough
which are of “special biodiversity interest”.
 Maintain the natural environment along the foreshore for the enjoyment of
residents and visitors to the Borough.
 Where practical promote self supervision of recreational activities taking place
on the foreshore and avoid over regulation.
 Ensure that the planning policy of the Council seeks to protect areas of the
foreshore.
Sport & Recreation
Fareham has a substantial number of opportunities available for recreation and sport.
A range of providers, including the Borough Council, County Council, Schools, Sports
Clubs, Community Organisations, Social Clubs and the private sector. They provide a
wide of facilities including football pitches, cricket wickets, rugby pitches, tennis
courts, bowling greens and artificial grass pitches.
Fareham Leisure Centre is the key strategic site for sport and recreation in the
Borough. The facility received a major £1.4m capital investment to improve the
facilities in 2006 after the management of the centre was transferred to Sport &
Leisure Management Ltd. A further investment was made in 2010 with the operator's
installing £220k of new fitness equipment and a new indoor cycling and dance studio
was installed in 2011.

14
Page 24

A review of the Playing Pitch Assessment & Strategy was completed in 2012. The
study considered the current quantitative and qualitative provision for each
catchment area for outdoor sports and estimated future demand for 2015 and 2026
for the whole Borough.
It concluded overall there was generally adequate provision for most of the main
outdoor sports with the exception of junior football pitches and cricket pitches. Other
needs identified include, a full size artificial pitch, outdoor floodlit netball, MUGA
located in each CAT area.
The open spaces improvement programme details seek to address shortfalls and
increase standards in outdoor sports facilities and play provision in the Borough over
the next five years by utilising the £3m in developer contributions.
Hampshire County Council’s Local Transport Plan sets out a broad approach
towards the promotion and encouragement of cycling within the County. The
Fareham Borough Cycling Strategy is currently being updated and will reflect both
the County and National Cycling Strategy Objectives.

Sport & Recreation Strategic Objectives
 Provide a new swimming pool for the western wards.
 Develop partnerships with sports clubs and organisations that provide
opportunities for local management arrangements that improve the quality of
provision.
 Encourage participation in sport and physical activity.
 Pursue external funding opportunities that improve the quantity and quality of
sport and recreation facilities in the Borough.
 Promote opportunities for establishing new and improved sport and recreation
facilities in the Welborne Development.
 Provide a full size artificial grass pitch in the Borough
 Work in partnership with the County Council to provide new cycle routes with the
aim of encouraging people to undertake leisure cycling to promote fitness and
improved health.
 Implement the programme of new and improved sports facilities utilising
developer contributions and external funding.
Culture & Heritage
Culture and heritage covers a diverse range of entertainment and artistic pursuits.
The three main venues in the Borough for culture provided by local authorities are:
•
•
•

Ferneham Hall owned and managed by Fareham Borough Council.
Ashcroft Arts Centre managed by Hampshire County Council.
Westbury Manor Museum provided jointly by Fareham Borough Council
and Hampshire County Council

15
Page 25

Ferneham Hall is a 732 seater multi-purpose arts and entertainments venue offering
a varied programme of concerts, shows, an annual family pantomime and light
entertainment.
The Ashcroft Arts Centre offers the opportunity for the local community to get
involved in arts activities and includes a small exhibition gallery and space for
performances that would not normally be shown at Ferneham Hall.
Westbury Manor Museum includes a display of local history and also hosts touring
exhibitions. The Westbury Manor also hosts the Fareham Tourist information Centre.
Hampshire County Council are currently undertaking a strategic review of the
museum and arts service as a result of changes to central funding arrangements for
museums and pressures on local government finances. The outcome is likely to have
a significant impact on the provision of the service in the future.
The Borough contains a number of ancient monuments, e.g. Portchester Castle and
retains strong naval traditions. There are a number of other venues of cultural
interest in the Borough including Bursledon Brickwork’s Museum and Conservation
Centre and Titchfield Abbey, which plays host to a number of events each year.
It should also be noted that Fareham lies in a sub region rich in arts, with high profile
areas for major facilities (Portsmouth, Southampton), major cultural events
(Chichester, Winchester, Salisbury) and entertainment (Bournemouth, Poole). Local
authority boundaries have little relationship to cultural, heritage and entertainment
needs.
Culture & Heritage Strategic Objectives
 Provide the opportunity for people to explore the history of the local area.
 Improve the programme, whilst reducing the costs of Ferneham Hall
Community Development
The Council provides and maintains 37 community buildings. These include
community halls, youth centres and scout buildings that are managed by local groups
and Community Associations. In the main this is an ageing building stock that
requires ongoing investment to bring up to modern standards. The Council has
identified the review of community buildings as a corporate high priority. Reviews
have been completed in the Portchester, Crofton and Fareham Town CAT areas and
work is currently underway on the Titchfield CAT area.
A new £2m community centre building was opened in Portchester in January 2013.
In 2011 Hampshire County Council made the decision to withdraw grant funding for
the four Community Schools in the Borough. The withdrawal of funding resulted in
the termination of community schools agreements that was intended to support the
schools in developing their programmes to offer wider community use of their
facilities. One of the consequences of the termination is the management of the
Lockswood Community Centre reverted back to the Council.
16
Page 26

Service Level Agreements with grant funding from the Council are in place with
Citizens Advice Bureau, Community Action Fareham and Relate for provision of
services to the local community.
In 2008, Fareham Park was identified by the Local Strategic Partnership (LSP) as an
area of the Borough requiring help and support. Following the demise of the LSP in
2010, the Council adopted the project as a corporate priority with the aim of providing
multi agency support for the community in Fareham Park.
Community Development Strategic Objectives
 Review the use of community centres, youth centres and sports pavilions;
rationalise provision and then modernise the buildings as appropriate.
 Provide multi agency support to the community in the Fareham Park area.
 Work in partnership with voluntary organisations and statutory agencies to
address the emerging community development needs in the Borough of Fareham.
 Provide grant aid for local community projects via the Community Fund and
Matched Funding grants programme.

Children & Young Persons Play
Fareham has approximately 45 play areas and five skate/MUGA sites which are
inspected and maintained by the Council's Streetscene Team. These facilities
provide play opportunities for a wide age range of children and young people across
the borough although there is deficiency in some areas. Developer contributions are
allocated to upgrade and provide new play areas. Additional play areas will also be
provided as with site development schemes.
Following the success of the Play Ranger service that ceased in 2012 when the
funding expired, the Council has been successful in obtaining some additional
funding which will provide a limited service during the 2013 school summer holidays.
The Corporate safeguarding policy was revised in 2012 and updated to take account
of safeguarding arrangements for vulnerable adults.

17
Page 27

Children and Young Persons Play Strategic Objectives


Establish new play areas funded with developer’s contributions as opportunities
arise.



Implement the Council's corporate Safeguarding policy and increase the level of
awareness for staff, elected members and groups and organisations working with
the Council.

How is the service financed?
Revenue Budget
The table below illustrates the net budget for each of the relevant leisure and cultural
service areas.

GRANTS & CONTRIBUTIONS
LEISURE PARTNERSHIP
FERNEHAM HALL
ALLOTMENTS
FAREHAM LEISURE CENTRE
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
COMMUNITY CENTRES
TOURIST INFORMATION CENTRE
WESTBURY MANOR MUSEUM
CEMETERIES & CLOSED CHURCHYRDS
COUNTRYSIDE REC & MANAGEMENT
OUTDOOR SPORT & RECREATION
COMMUNITY PARKS & OPEN SPACES
MEALS ON WHEELS
FORESHORE
NET EXPENDITURE

Revised
Base
Estimate Estimate
2012/13
2013/14
£000s
£000s
287,400 318,300
58,000
100
433,100 390,800
25,000
27,800
281,000 285,900
135,900 107,900
330,500 342,200
55,100
51,000
103,200 104,000
251,200 221,000
137,900 135,300
361,300 367,400
930,500 913,500
8,400
4,400
-36,400
19,600
3,362,100 3,289,200

18
Page 28

Capital Budget
The table below illustrates the profiled Council committed capital expenditure for
leisure & cultural related services that fall within the remit of the Community Portfolio.

Year
2012/13
2013/14
2014/15
2015/16
2016/17
Total

Amount
£000s
3,171
1,610
1,644
286
425
7,136

Section 106 Developer Contributions
Fareham Borough Council has been collecting developer contributions for the
provision of open space since the 1980s. The method for collecting contributions is
set out in the Council's Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) for Open Space.
In October 2010 the Executive agreed to combine allocations of contributions into
two open space types as opposed to five and allocating the different types of
contributions into the respective five Community Action Team (CAT) areas.
There is £3.9m allocated to play space and other recreational space and outdoor
sports facilities which is part of the Open Spaces Improvement programme funded
from developer contributions.
The Open Spaces Improvement programme is reported to the Executive annually
and confirms projects completed and how the balance once funding is allocated for
new projects in the programme.
In May 2013 the Council introduced the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) that will
largely replace Section 106 Contributions. This effectively means that the Council will
no longer collect developer contributions specifically for the provision of open space.

19
Page 29

What were the main achievements in 2012/13?
The following provides a list of the achievements of Fareham Borough Council in
support of the corporate objective, Leisure for Health & for Fun, in 2012/13.
•

Olympic Torch Relay - On Sunday 15 July 1000,s of people descended
on Fareham Town Centre to celebrate the arrival of the Olympic Torch.
The event was the culmination of a series of events that took place across
the Borough to celebrate the London 2012 Olympic Games.

•

Queens Diamond Jubilee Celebrations - Community events were
organised over the spring bank holiday weekend to celebrate the Queens
Diamond Jubilee. The events were held in the four parks that were
awarded QE II Fields in Trust status and included the unveiling of a stone
and plaque to mark the occasion.

•

Portchester Community Centre - The construction of a new £2m
community centre to serve the residents of Portchester was completed in
December 2012 and opened in January 2013. The old dilapidated
community centre building has been demolished along with the old tennis
courts and additional car parking is being created.

•

Wicor Pavilion - The construction of a new £700k 6 team changing room
pavilion was completed in December 2012 ahead of schedule and was
opened for use in the first week of January 2013. The facility was jointly
funded by the Football Foundation in partnership with the Council and AFC
Portchester.

•

Lockswood Community Centre - The management of the Lockswood
Community Centre at Centre Way, Locks Heath, transferred from the
Brookfield Community School to Fareham Borough Council on 1 April
2012. Six individuals from groups who use the Lockswood Community
Centre set up a charitable organisation with the aim of taking on the
management of the facility. The group have developed a business plan that
has been approved by the Executive and are in the final stages of agreeing
the arrangements to take over the management of the building.

•

Assets of Community Value - Under the Localism Act 2011, voluntary and
community organisations and parish councils can nominate an asset to be
included in a ‘list of assets of community value’. A new procedure for nominating
such assets has been developed and published on the Council's website.

•

Review of Community Buildings - The review of community buildings is a
corporate priority and the third phase of the process, the Fareham CAT area
needs assessment and draft master plan was completed in March 2012.

20
Page 30

•

Fareham Park Project - Fareham Park has been identified as an area of the
Borough requiring help and support. Following the demise of the LSP in 2010, the
Council adopted the project as a corporate priority with the aim of proving support
to the local community in Fareham Park. A new steering group has been formed
to lead the project and a Project Officer appointed on a 3 year contract. £17,500
"Have Your Say" funding has already been secured and work is currently being
undertaken to organise community event to determine how this money will be
allocated.

•

Indoor Sport Study & Playing Pitch Strategy - These two key studies were
completed in 2012 and will inform the future provision of sports pitches and indoor
sports facilities in the Borough.

•

Play Area Improvements - New play areas were installed at Laurel Gardens and
Locks Heath Park.

•

Tennis Court Improvements - Improvements to the court surface and fencing
was undertaken at Locks Heath and Titchfield Tennis Courts.

•

Matched Funding Grants - The Council awarded matched funding grants to the
following groups to provide new and improved sport and community facilities in
the Borough; Titchfield Boxing Club £25,000, Fareham Bowls Club, £25,000,
Sarisbury Community Centre £7,500, Salmiakki Indoor Sports Centre £21,500
and Portchester Community School All Weather Pitch £50,000.

•

Bath Lane Pavilion - Plans have been developed to refurbish the existing
changing rooms at Bath Lane which include the provision of a new club house for
Fareham & Crofton Cricket Club. The old dilapidated clubhouse will be
demolished and a new grounds maintenance store provided.

•

Community Action Fareham - SLA Review - Review completed and reported to
March Executive with decision to reduce funding by 4% and review again in 6
months when results of HCC CVS review have been finalised.

•

Play Ranger Service - The 3 year Play Ranger programme, funded by the Big
Lottery, came to an end in August 2012. The service was very popular with
children and young people across the borough.

•

Fareham Community Savers - The Council has developed a new credit union in
partnership with First Wessex Housing Association and the Southern Cooperative.

•

Broadlaw Walk - Support and guidance has been given to First Wessex Housing
Association and the Community Volunteers to assist with the development of the
new Broadlaw Walk Community building.

•

Safeguarding Policy - The current policy has been revised and updated to take
account of safeguarding arrangements for vulnerable adults.

21
Page 31

•

Red Barn Allotments – Refurbishment of building including a new pitch roof, new
electrics and redecoration.

•

Linden Lea - Creation of Wildflower Meadow and successful Botanical Art event
with local school children.

•

South and South East in Bloom - Gold Award in large Town/City Category,
also Gold Awards for other Parks including Westbury Manor Garden, Sensory
Garden, Holly Hill and Warsash Common plus Green Flag Awards for Holly Hill
and Sensory Garden.

•

Roman Grove Cemetery - New entrance gates, pillars and walls.

•

Parks and Countryside Events - Successful programme of events organised
across the Borough.

22
Page 32

What is the plan of action for 2013 and beyond?
The following provides a summary of the key actions emerging from the strategy that
will form the work programme for the Leisure & Community team.
Category
Children & Young
Persons Play
Parks & Open
Spaces

Community
Development

Culture &
Heritage
Parks & Open
Spaces
Sports &
Recreation
Sports &
Recreation
Community
Development

Parks & Open
Spaces
Parks & Open
Spaces
Parks & Open
Spaces
Parks & Open
Spaces
Sports &
Recreation
Parks & Open
Spaces
Sports &
Recreation

Action/Improvement
Provide a targeted Play Ranger Service for 11
weeks of the school holidays in 10 locations
across the borough.
Complete feasibility study for provision of
community facilities at the Coldeast site to
include a new swimming pool, cemetery,
allotments, parkland, play area, community
pavilion and sports pitches.
Agree new Service Level Agreement with
Community Action Fareham, taking account of
new funding arrangements resulting from HCC
review of funding for Councils for Voluntary
Services.
Implement the new management arrangements
arising from HCC Strategic Review of Museum
and Arts Service.
Introduction of bees on Allotment sites
(Allotment Rd Allotments as a trial)
Complete the installation of a new cricket
square at Bath Lane Recreation Ground.
Establish future arrangements for the
management of Fareham Leisure Centre when
the current contract expires in May 2015.
Complete community buildings needs
assessment and master plan for community
buildings in the Titchfield Community Action
Team area.
Wickham Road Cemetery - Extensive
repairs/rebuilding of walls and pillars
Play area improvements at Swanwick Lane/
Sarisbury Green play areas.
Play area improvements at Abshot Road.
Landscape improvements at Portchester Park
Complete improvement works to Salterns
promenade and provision of a cycleway on the
land ward side of sea wall.
Introduction of new wild flower meadows on the
QE11 sites as part of the WW1 & D Day
celebrations (subject to approval of funding)
Finalise the draft master plan to deliver the
improvements identified in the vision for Park
23
Page 33

Target
July
2013
Sept
2013

Sept
2013

Sept
2013
Sept
2013
Nov
2013
Dec
2013
Dec
2013

Dec
2013
Dec
2013
March
2014
March
2014
May
2014
June
2014
July
2014

Sports &
Recreation
Sports &
Recreation

Community
Development
Children & Young
Persons Play

Parks & Open
Spaces

Lane Recreation Ground.
Complete the installation of land drainage
system at Burridge Recreation Ground.
Refurbishment of the cricket pavilion at Bath
Lane Recreation Ground and demolition of
dilapidated clubhouse in partnership with
Fareham & Crofton Cricket Club.
Implement actions arising from the Fareham
Park Project.
Implement programme of new and improved
parks, play area and sports facilities using
developer contributions and external funding as
identified in Open Spaces Improvement
Programme.
Implement proposals to provide new allotment
provision on the Coldeast site in Sarisbury and
Daedalus in Stubbington/Hill Head

24
Page 34

Sept
2014
Jan
2015

March
2015
March
2015

Sept
2017

Agenda Item 8

Report to
Leisure and Community Policy
Development and Review Panel
Date

24 July 2013

Report of:

Director of Community

Subject:

PORTCHESTER MUGA - RESULTS OF CONSULTATION

SUMMARY
A consultation exercise has been conducted to ascertain stakeholder's views on the
possible provision of a Multi Use Games Area (MUGA) on the site of the former
Portchester Community Centre.
RECOMMENDATION
a)

The Panel is requested to consider the outcome of the consultation and whether
they wish to recommend to the Executive that a MUGA be provided at this
location; and

b)

The Panel is asked to consider the request of those residents of Clive Grove
who back onto the tennis courts, for the existing fencing to be removed and
replaced with a close boarded timber fence as part of a wide landscaping
scheme.

L&C-130724-r03-gsa.docx

Page 35

-2INTRODUCTION
1. The Leisure and Community Policy Development and Review Panel at their meeting on
6 March 2013 requested that officers conduct a consultation on the possible provision
of a multi use games area (MUGA) on the site of the former of the Portchester
Community Centre.
2. The aim of the consultation being to ascertain stakeholders views on whether they
were in a favour of a MUGA the approximate size of a single tennis court being
installed and if so which activities they would wish to see accommodated.
CONSULTATION
3. The consultation was carried out by means of:•

Questionnaires made available online and sent to local residents and key
stakeholders such as the sporting clubs at this location, the police, the Westlands
Medical Centre, the Portchester Community Association and Portchester East
and West ward councillors.

•

An event at the Portchester Community Centre on the 14 June 2013 at which all
interested parties were invited to attend and view images of what the proposed
MUGA could look like. There were also images of similar facilities elsewhere in
the Borough, key facts relating to the provision of a MUGA and location plan.
There was also an opportunity for interested parties to discuss the proposal with
Council officers present.

•

The tenants of the new Portchester Community Centre were consulted to obtain
their views on the management of the proposed MUGA.
OUTCOME

4. A total of 45 people attended the consultation event on 14 June 2013. The key issues
raised on the day were:
(a)

The Portchester Bowls Club advised that their committee had discussed the
proposals and all 9 of them were opposed to the installation of a MUGA. The
main reason being that they believed that there was a risk that it could become a
focal point for anti social behaviour. In addition they perceived the behaviour of
the younger people in the area as intimidating and did not wish to risk an
increase in this.

(b)

There were concerns that the hard surface of the tennis courts would be
attractive to scooter riders and be used inappropriately.

(c)

Numerous residents commented that since the removal of the former community
centre and tennis courts, there had been a reduction in anti social behaviour and
they were concerned that the MUGA proposal could reverse this.

(d)

Five residents of Clive Grove who back onto the tennis courts voiced strong
opposition to the proposal because they did not want to experience the noise
from rebound sports and were concerned about the potential return of anti social
behaviour.

(e)

There was a general consensus that should a MUGA be installed and made

L&C-130724-r03-gsa.docx

Page 36

-3available for free casual access and therefore not managed, then this would be
unacceptable due to threat of noise and disruption during unsocial hours.
(f)

The Chairman of the former Portchester Tennis Club commented that his
preference was the reinstatement of two tennis courts rather than the provision of
a MUGA.

5. A total of 131 questionnaires were returned

For and Against MUGA
100
80
60
40
20
0
For

Against

•

82 - Responded that they would like a new enclosed multi use games area
(MUGA), located on the site of the old Community Centre. Of these 53
submitted comments.

•

46 - responded that they were not in favour of a Multi use games area (MUGA).
Of these 37 submitted comments

•

3 - didn't answer this question

Sports people would like to see
in the MUGA
80
60
40
20
0
Tennis

75 Tennis

Basketball

66 Basketball

Netball

Football

59 Netball

Other

53 Football

40 Other

6. A summary of the comments made on the returned questionnaires is included as
Appendix A.
7. The local safer neighbourhoods policing team have expressed strong reservations
L&C-130724-r03-gsa.docx

Page 37

-4about the provision of a MUGA at this location and consider that it would directly lead
to a recurrence of the anti social behaviour previously experienced on the former
tennis courts and undo the work that has been undertaken to tackle the previous
problems.
8. The management committee of the Portchester Community Centre Limited (PCCL)
have expressed a strong reluctance to take on any management responsibility in
relation to a MUGA. Whilst they are in principle supportive of additional facilities, they
do not consider that they have the resources available to manage a MUGA as with only
one member of staff on duty at a time, they would need to leave the community centre
unoccupied to carry out any duties on the MUGA, e.g. opening, locking, provision of
equipment etc.
9. The PCCL also have reservations about the need to secure the facility when there may
be a number of younger people using the facility and possibly not being cooperative. In
this regard, they consider that with only one member of staff they would be vulnerable
in this situation.
ISSUES ARISING
Tennis
10.

A key consideration in specifying a MUGA is which sports it should cater for. Whilst
the response to the surveys suggest that whilst there is a demand for a tennis
provision as part of a MUGA, without an organisation to manage the facility, tennis
cannot be provided unless this is the sole activity catered for which would be contrary
to the concept of a MUGA. It is therefore suggested that should a MUGA be provided
then it not be appropriate to include tennis.

11.

An alternative to a MUGA would be to install a single dedicated tennis court. Whilst
this would address the perceived need for tennis provision and address the problems
of switching between tennis and other sports on an unmanaged facility; it is contrary to
the concept of a MUGA and would still remain a site for potential anti social behaviour.

12.

In deciding to remove the former tennis courts at Portchester Community Centre, the
Executive took into account, not only the condition of the courts and the problems
being experienced with anti social behaviour, but also the fact that the Council has
contributed matched funding of £50,000 to the Portchester Community School towards
the improvement of their sports facilities, including two floodlit tennis courts which are
available for community use.
Security

13.

The consultees have expressed concerns that a MUGA may become a venue for anti
social behaviour and lead to a repeat of the problems and issues arising at the former
tennis courts. Whilst the presence of the police room at the community centre may
deter this along with the potential inclusion of CCTV, the risk remains that the
problems previously encountered could return to the detriment of the local residents.
Former tennis courts

14.

At the time when consideration was being given to the removal of the former tennis
courts, the original intent was to remove the perimeter fencing to the properties in

L&C-130724-r03-gsa.docx

Page 38

-5Clive Grove and replace this with a close boarded timber fence.
15.

This work was not carried out when the tennis court surfacing was removed as there
was concern that removal of the high perimeter fencing would reduce the protection it
provided to the rear gardens of those properties and because of the complications that
would arise in determining and agreeing a new fence line and finish to the agreement
of all residents.

16.

Those residents who attended the consultation event expressed an interest in the
fencing works being completed as part of a wider landscaping scheme. Given the mix
of Council and residential fencing intertwined along this stretch of land, recreating the
original fence line would be problematic and the consent of all residents would be
required to achieve this.

17.

The contractor who removed the tennis courts imported top soil and reseeded the
area. Unfortunately the standard of the imported top soil is very poor and the
contractor has been requested to remove existing top soil to be replaced with better
quality material and then reseed. It is planned to carry this out in conjunction with the
works to extend the car park, but in the meantime the area will need to remain fenced.
Landscaping

18.

In addition to the works required to the former tennis courts and potential replacement
of the fencing, a majority of residents expressed a desire to see the area returned to
open space. The removal of the former community centre and tennis courts, when
landscaped, will be in keeping with the existing parkland area at this location.
RISK ASSESSMENT

19.

There are no significant risks in relation to this report.
CONCLUSION

20. Although there were more responses received in favour of the MUGA than against, the
majority of comments from interested parties and residents in the immediate vicinity
indicated that they do not wish to see a MUGA at the site of the former Portchester
Community Centre. This is mainly due to the fear that this could lead to a return of the
anti social behaviour experienced on the tennis courts that used to be at this location.
21. If MUGA was provided, it would need to be left open at all times as the tenants of the
Portchester Community Centre do not consider they are in a position to manage the
courts.
22. An alternate provision of a single tennis court has been suggested, however this would
not remove the perceived threat this form of provision could become a focal point for
anti social behaviour.
Appendix A: Summary of the comments made on the returned questionnaires
Enquiries:

L&C-130724-r03-gsa.docx

Page 39

-6For further information on this report please contact Gareth Satherley, Leisure
Development Manager (Ext 4476)

L&C-130724-r03-gsa.docx

Page 40

Appendix A

Portchester MUGA Consultation - Summary of
Comments
1.

As the local policing sergeant, I make the following comments based on
evidence of experience in this area as opposed to my own personal views,
which will remain personal. The previous site i.e. the tennis courts were
located in the wrong place i.e. bordering residents gardens. The area
attracted youths who played football on the courts, were often heard
shouting and swearing and caused endless calls to the police in relation to
anti social behaviour. Since the courts have been demolished, and the old
site has now cleared, we have enjoyed a period of peace and a distinct
lack of calls from local residents re ASB. I am confident that putting a
MUGA in this location will fuel an increase in ASB both from within the
MUGA and from associated cars and mopeds that will attend the car park,
as they did before. Local residents will likely express their own feelings but
purely from a policing standpoint, this is too close to local residents who
have endured ASB for several years in this area up until recently and it will
likely undo all of the good and hard work the police have done to get to
this level. I'm not against a MUGA but it has to be in the right area. Based
on the level of ASB reports historically associated with youths, this is not
the right place to install a MUGA.

2.

This is the worst idea I have ever heard. Please do not build this. Please
landscape the land and give us some peace. No MUGA

3.

I am fully against the MUGA being built within Portchester park. My family
& I live where the old tennis courts &community centre were located.
Since they have been removed we have finally had peace and quiet. We
have a three year old and a one year old child and when we are in the
garden all you can hear are youths shouting obscene language this
obviously is not acceptable and is directly linked to the tennis courts and
old community centre. As well as the swearing the noise of footballs
hitting the community centre wall sends you insane and really does affect
our quality of life. Since the tennis courts and community centre has gone
it has been fantastic and anti social behaviour has stopped. Please do not
build this MUGA as anti social behaviour will come back and ruin
resident's lives, again. Many thanks. Clive grove resident.

4.

This is not supported by the local community. The tennis courts caused us
so much anti social behaviour. They have been taken away and it has
been lovely. Why replace something that caused so much misery with
something that is noisy & will cause more anti social behaviour. I have
spoken to lots if people within Portchester park & they do NOT support
this. We feel the land should landscaped. Please do not build this & bring
anti social behaviour back to our door. Our quality of life will be ruined.
100% Not supported. Thank you.

Page 41

Portchester MUGA Consultation - Summary of
Comments
5.

This is a terrible idea! Anti social behaviour will be back. Why build this
when you have just removed the tennis courts and old community centre
which attracted so much anti social behaviour!! The noise from when
youths kicked the football against the community centre wall was
horrendous and ruined our daytime and evenings. Please do not build this.
This is stupid. MUGA is not welcome.

6.

The noise was really bad when the kids played football against the wall of
the old community centre, why build this now as the problem has gone
away and we have got rid of a big problem in Portchester? Does the
Council not learn? This is not supported in anyway.

7.

As residents who have endured the last 7 years of noise, disruption after
hour's foul language and general disturbances, we are naturally
apprehensive at any proposals that may just spoil the peace we are now
enjoying. Please take into account that we are the people who have to
live with the decisions you make!

8.

I am very fearful that if this games centre is built it will bring back the vile
language and youths drinking in the area. I will not go near the park if this
is built and I shouldn't have to feel like this in my own community.

9.

Since the old community centre has gone the area has suffered little anti
social behaviour. At last I can walk within the park and my own garden
without fear of my young children hearing swearing. To be honest I will
really dread the day the MUGA is built as then I will not be able to use my
garden again. Why have this MUGA?

10.

The noise of the ball bouncing against the old community centre wall was
awful. It made our lives hell. This MUGA will be in the same place & the
noise will be back! Large groups of youths gathered by the old community
centre & the noise of the ball hitting the wall woke both of our children up!
The noise was so bad in our living room. Please do not build this facility; it
will be HELL once again.

11.

Since the community centre has been taken, away the area has been
lovely & quite. I have previously had to report many incidents to police
when the tennis court & Community Centre was there = firearms (Kids
with BB guns), ASB, Swearing, fighting, drugs, alcohol & general abusive
aggressive behaviour.

12.

If you have a Multi complex games area built, the same trouble (noise) etc,
will happen again, as with the old tennis courts

13.

Please listen to local residents. We have enjoyed peace since the tennis
courts; basketball hoop & community centre have gone. It has truly been

Page 42

Portchester MUGA Consultation - Summary of
Comments
wonderful. I am very worried about the new proposal for this MUGA. This
will create a new nightmare for us. Why build this? There are elderly
vulnerable residents who live here & if you build this it will no doubt cause
them misery. Bad language & general bad behaviour. We have suffered
with years of trouble over the park area, it is now fixed. Why re introduce a
problem? Not supported by the community.
14.

The idea of a MUGA is totally out of the question. After years of battling to
remove the yob element from the old tennis courts and the Community
centre car park, you propose something that will open 24 hours a day, with
no control on who is using it whatsoever. we all know what will happen:
there will be scooters riding around the car park again, the yobs and their
bad language will be around until the early hours of the morning, and just
as badly, there will be the incessant sound of the balls thumping on the
concrete, penetrating the walls of all our houses, no matter how loud we
turn the TV up! And of course not to mention the utter drain on police
resources. There are superb facilities available at Portchester Com
School for those who genuinely want to play sports and also at Wicor
recreation ground. Please restore our green fields again and let the new
Community Centre and Surrounding area be non-intimidating place to visit
once again, for all to enjoy.

15.

The area we live in has been vastly improved since the old Community
centre and tennis courts have been removed. This MUGA will attract un
wanted nuisance back to our area. When will the Council learn that this is
no welcomed in our area? Save your money and don't build something
that nobody wants!

16.

Since the tennis court and community centre has gone the area has been
brilliant. Please do not build this. We do not want this built.

17.

There are many questions to ask. We are One of the 'victims' living
adjacent to the old tennis courts. Would the surface be concrete? (noise
factor) Would there be a key-holder? Would there be security? Would it be
bookable? Will it be locked up at a specified time? How will you stop the
yobs gathering there and causing havoc again and using bad language
like they did on the old tennis courts? How will the various sports avoid
clashing? Providing the facility was secure, policed properly, with a
booking system, I can see no reason not to have a tennis/netball court
only, but please, please no football or basketball! There are fantastic
facilities at Portchester Com School for this. Thank You.

18.

Without management unworkable

19.

leave as is now

20.

Whatever goes there needs supervision to stop it being used by drug

Page 43

Portchester MUGA Consultation - Summary of
Comments
users. Used needles and condoms have been found in the children's play
area more than once!
21.

If the MUGA could be closed at night this would (I hope)prevent the
nuisance of it at night. Suggest 4pm winter and 8pm summer

22.

Let the Community Centre run it. They would keep all the Yobs etc out. I
suppose you can't expect much with the Tory Shower. Get the Back of
ALL gardens at the Our/My garden tidied up 34 Clive.

23.

Yes, before you spend money on brand new facilities take a long hard look
at the existing children's playground which is poorly maintained and
verging on dangerous. The play surface is very thin in places and the
ground beneath it is sinking in some areas. If action is not taken the play
surface will break up and a child or adult will put their foot through and
could have a significant injury. There is a patch beside the large climbing
frame which has a hole which must be about a foot deep underneath it.
The hedge between the playground and the bowling green has not been
cut; there are numerous long brambles with thorns on trailing onto the
playground just at head height for the small children. The grass is rarely
cut and, when it is, the cuttings are so long that when they are left on the
surface the area looks like a farmer's field for days. The gardens around
the children's playground are well maintained which is absolutely great for
all the dog walkers C their animals have far better surroundings to
defecate in than the children have to play in - that cannot be right! Please
send someone out to take a serious look at the area before an accident
happens.

24.

Rather than spend on a MUGA, I would prefer the area to be landscaped
or left as flat grass. The noise, ASB and disturbance would be excessive
for residents nearby who have had to put up with many years of this
already. If you want to build a MUGA then do so at Wicor Rec.

25.

We Would like the grass land we lost when the new community centre was
built to be replaced. No to MUGA area. Due to all issues previously held
due to tennis courts / basketball courts

26.

More Tree Planting, Pity about the name 'MUGA' not exactly the right
message

27.

More Trees

28.

Grass the area with also flower beds

29.

What else will be done with the remaining land that the old community
centre and tennis courts used to occupy? This should be returned to park
land as we will have lost considerable green space otherwise.

Page 44

Portchester MUGA Consultation - Summary of
Comments
30.

Leave as much green open space as possible as the former site that was
used to such good effect by children with footballs (grass is always better
than astro to play on) and dog walkers was removed to build the supposed
community centre under the premise that the land would be given back to
grass and landscape and not for a facility that will just mirror what is
already available at Portchester community school. As it is used very little
by such a small amount of people, why not remove the bowls court and
build on that if need be.

31.

Keep the park no more buildings.

32.

Leave park as is i.e. grassed area - Portchester Castle would be better
used for sports etc.

33.

Yes just landscaping a pleasant area to take children

34.

I would like the former Community Centre Site to be landscaped and
public open space

35.

Just Landscaping

36.

Leave it Green! Nice pleasant outlook!

37.

It would be far nicer if the area in question were to be landscaped with
trees, possibly a wild flower area and also some seating and perhaps a
picnic area. I feel that the MUGA will only serve to encourage further
groups of youths on scooters who will continue intimidate the local
residents, even worse than now, especially as you do not propose any
supervision of the area.

38.

The remaining area of land not used for a MUGA needs to be available for
public use so the wood and metal fences that have been put up around
the new community centre and where the old community centre was need
to be removed.

39.

Leave as Green Space as initially proposed add shrubs & seating or make
into a rose Garden in Memory of Portchester People. As there is no plan
to control the proposed MUGA use so there would be no way of
preventing Hooligans of yobs abusing the area, or who had priority. There
are already adequate sports facilities for at the school and leisure space at
Wicor rec.

40.

Perhaps a refurbishment of the original tennis courts would have cost tax
payers less money. We were lead to believe the reasons the tennis courts
were pulled down was the noise to local residents, would this not cause
more noise and disturbance? Regardless of the comments and

Page 45

Portchester MUGA Consultation - Summary of
Comments
suggestions of local residents I would assume the decision has already
been made as was the decision on the community centre. ( LOOKS LIKE
WE ARE GETTING A MUGA )
41.

See the front of this and the shaded area was the area of two tennis courts
which were built in 1971. This area could have been resurfaced and
provided one or two public tennis courts

42.

Perhaps your shouldn't have taken the tennis courts and basket ball court
away in the first place - saved money by having them renovated it has got
to have been cheaper than starting again from scratch!!!!

43.

The Basketball and northern Tennis court could/should have been utilised
for this sports purpose. The high quality fence at the northern edge could
have been extended to surround the area and make it secure. Giving one
tennis court and another tennis / MUGA court. Resurfacing of the area
could have been done for less than £20K a saving for FBC!!!

44.

Whilst I feel that a sports facility is required, I am not in favour of an area
that only accommodates just one Playing area. The solution to my mind is
a facility that allows for at least 2 activities to take place at the same time,
i.e.: Tennis + Basketball or 2 Tennis Matches! I am a member of
Portchester Petanque Club, closely aligned to Portchester Bowls Club and
we both have no objection to the Sports facility but it must be in a position
that allows our clubs to operate without interruption. As facilities increase,
naturally the need for domestic back up will also increase, such as
possible perimeter cover for inclement weather conditions and controlled
Toilet facilities. I am aware that the Community Centre Toilet is currently
used effectively by both Bowls and Petanque with limited Key Access.
With the increase in the number of people that may use the facilities the
present arrangement clearly would not be appropriate. Please take these
points into account when planning the final design as a playing area
without facilities will only cause problems for current users and members
of the public. Finally as a past user of Tennis Courts etc. I would be
interested to know who will be in control of MUGA whatever form we finish
up with. It cannot be left unattended!! Nick Hall, Chairman, Portchester
Petanque Club.

45.

Increase the car parking area. Provide a public tennis court.

46.

It would have been nice to have had a comment about the facilities before
the tennis facilities were removed.

47.

How will the MUGA be maintained? Will it be locked at night? will there be
a fee to hire
Needs to be bookable

48.

Page 46

Portchester MUGA Consultation - Summary of
Comments
49.

Booking of court time. changing rooms

50.

Book them

51.

It appears that Portchester is the poor relation of the borough having very
little in the way of sports facilities that are "free" to the general public; other
areas have tennis courts and a MUGA!!

52.

I am not happy. You have used a very old aerial view photo, which is very
misleading. Your question is based on “what to build on the old community
centre.” As you know you have removed the old community centre, the
amazing number of tennis courts and the already there MUGA and turned
the area into a dirt field. You built the New Portchester Community Centre
on another family friendly playing area. I understand the population of
Portchester is old. I cannot believe you did all this without a Plan.
Therefore working on the assumption that you are claver people. I would
say your Plan has always been to build a new MUGA on the site of the old
community centre, so you can tell everyone that you wish to help kids in
Portchester. As we both know this is Pants! You are just bending to the
grey vote that rule Portchester. You don’t care about children – they don’t
vote. The New MUGA is the minimum you should build – look at what they
have built for kids in Portsmouth. My kids and their kids have played in
that area in Portchester for years. Looking on the bright side, you're not
building flats. I am still not happy. NB Please do not send back a PC
answer email saying nothing.

53.

Make the MUGA bigger! If it's the size of one tennis court then how many
can use the facility at once? On the old tennis courts there were
sometimes up to 30 kids trying to play, and when they are involved in a
game of something then they are not involved in anything unlawful.

54.

It looks quite a small MUGA area to devote to so many sports and does
not appear to be replacing as much space as previously given to tennis
courts. Could there be 2 x MUGA courts? A small area given over for
scooters/skating would be good (I know there's a skate park at Wicor), but
when you have 2 kids of differing ages it would be useful to have an option
for the 'tweenies' at the park. Although I'm through the toddler/pre-school
age myself, I would have found it really useful to have a large flat
pavement type surface/cycle track to teach my boys to ride their bikes.
Teaching them on residential pavements/roadways is not suitable and
bikes are banned on all the really useful areas such as seafront proms. A
few picnic tables would be good too, with some shade around.

55.

The multi games area would be a very welcome improvement to the park
and may help to release the play park for younger children as at present it
is often swamped with older children with nothing else to do. The multi
sports area would give a purposeful space for older children to use. If a

Page 47

Portchester MUGA Consultation - Summary of
Comments
multi games area was built then care and planning may need to be taken
to ensure that the behaviour of a few does not spoil it for other youngsters
who want to use it for meeting with friends and playing sports. Will the
community centre have an oversight of its use? Will immediate residents
have a ready access to someone to share concerns if is misuse by a few?
56.

More than 1 MUGA (Free to Use), Large play area for all Children, CCTV

57.

If you decide to include football on the MUGA, please install inset
permanent goal mouths as shown in the image on last page

58.

Would the fence be curved at top to deflect balls back into the area if
practical Sorry if these comments are late as I did not read of any end date
for return of written reply's and comments

59.

Not football, as there are plenty of places around Portchester where
football can be played on the grass.

60.

Chill out area for use between games.

61.

Please put 3 tennis courts back, they should not have been removed.

62.

Going to play tennis with my 11 year old son was one of my favourite
things + we would love to be able to do that again. We used to ride our
bikes to the courts + play regularly. I miss it terribly!

63.

There is a noticeable lack of publicly accessible tennis courts in the
Portchester area. One new one (to replace the lost 3) is not enough for the
population served

64.

Need more multi sports areas now that the tennis courts have been taken
away, not all of us are pensioners

65.

Anything that will help the kids use up their excess energy would be good.
You would also need good lighting in the area.

66.

Should have one play area & 3 tennis courts. We have lost our tennis
facilities. People of Portchester deserve the opportunity to play this
wonderful game. You won't convince me that Portchester School is happy
to see people playing on school tennis courts in term time and at
weekends. There is a lot of land round the new centre which could be
utilised for sport.

67.

One tennis court is insufficient to run a proper club. Use of tennis courts
at Portchester School will also not work for a club because access would
need to be weekdays/weekends/evenings (9am-9pm) with no restrictions
caused by caretaker cover, bank holidays etc.

Page 48

Portchester MUGA Consultation - Summary of
Comments
68.

A separate tennis court available for use throughout the day. As is
provided at Titchfield and Burridge, as at present there is no public tennis
court in Portchester available during daytimes.

69.

All areas should be accessible to wheelchair users.

70.

We have a good football facility at Wicor, but tennis and basket ball would
be much appreciated

71.

Separate tennis courts for young people & a basket ball court, access all
time we do not like having to get keys

72.

Ensure that they are available to all residents of Portchester

73.

Tennis courts, Swimming Pool

74.

Please build the Jim!!

75.

A swimming pool would be ideal for the young and elderly residents of
Portchester.

76.

Toilet Facilities, other than those in the new community centre

77.

More toilet facilities.

78.

More toilet facilities.

79.

Outdoor fitness equipment

80.

Some of the play equipment needs updating/painting as looking quite
shabby now. A zip wire would be a good addition also.

81.

Zip-wire, BMX Track

82.

Please bring the 9 - 12yr olds youth club back in the community centre

83.

The area has a real problem with dog owners not clearer up their dogs
mess. This makes it not very nice for children to run about on the grassy
areas and pathways.

84.

Lots of bins and signs regards to disposal of waste/rubbish. As this seems
to be a big problem with other facilities/parks (Wicor Recreation Grounds)
that have been introduced into the area. and to make sure that this

85.

Cut the grass more regularly.

Page 49

Portchester MUGA Consultation - Summary of
Comments
86.

Update Wicor recreation ground to provide some sport facilities at either
site

87.

Extend the carpark.

88.

How about bowls

89.

Get the email address correct so that peoples' views will be properly
recorded. Underscore missing in council 'have your say letter'. Cafe in
park. More than one tennis court.
NO.

90.

Page 50

Agenda Item 9

Report to
Leisure and Community Policy
Development and Review Panel
Date

24 July 2013

Report of:

Director of Community

Subject:

PROPOSALS TO COMMEMORATE THE CENTENARY OF WW1
AND 70th ANNIVERSARY OF D DAY

SUMMARY
The purpose of this report is to advise members of the proposals that are planned to
take place to commemorate the centenary of World War I and the 70th anniversary of
D day.
RECOMMENDATION

Members are requested to support the proposals outlined in the report and request
that the Executive considers the report and allocates the funding required to
implement all proposals.

l&c-130724-r04 -swo.docx

Page 51

-2INTRODUCTION
1. The purpose of this report is to advise members of the proposals that are planned to
take place to commemorate the centenary of World War I and the 70th anniversary of D
Day.
BACKGROUND
2. Across the Country, there will be a significant number of events planned to
commemorate the centenary of WW1, which started on 4 August 1914 and also the
70th anniversary of D Day landings which commenced on 6 June 1944.
3. Both Fareham and Hampshire Councils would also like to commemorate both by
planning a number of events to involve the whole community.
PROPOSALS
4. In order to provide a long lasting legacy, the following proposals have been put
together to commemorate both the WW1 centenary and the 70th anniversary of D Day.
Holy Trinity Church open space - Landscaping enhancement
5. The open space at the rear of Holy Trinity Church is a little known open space that is
effectively a green oasis in Fareham Town Centre. With some improvements it could
become a very attractive area for people to visit and enjoy.
6. It is therefore proposed that the following projects be considered to both commemorate
the WW1 & 70th anniversary of D Day whilst improving the open space for use by the
wider community.
(a)

The planting of a Wildflower Meadow along the Western boundary. The
sowing of this meadow would either be undertaken during Autumn 2013 or
Spring 2014 depending on weather conditions. The time of flowering would
be during May to August 2014.

(b)

The planting of several rose beds on the southern boundary. The roses
would be of a red variety called ‘Red Velvet’ suitable for such a
commemorative planting. They would be planted in November 2013 and
would come into flower between May to September 2014.

(c)

A number of trees planted to add some interest, height and future shade into
the open space. These would be planted during winter 2013 or 2014.

(d)

The installation of two benches to provide areas where residents and
visitors to Fareham can sit and enjoy the open space. These could be
installed prior to June 2014.

(e)

There is an opportunity to place two plaques within the open space. These
could either be placed on the benches or adjacent to the trees. The
positioning could be determined at a later date.

l&c-130724-r04 -swo.docx

Page 52

-3Queen Elizabeth II sites – Wild flower meadows
7. Members will recall that four of the Council’s recreation grounds were given QE11
status, which means they are protected indefinitely from development. The sites are as
follows:
•
•
•
•

Allotment Road Recreation Ground, Sarisbury
Bath Lane Recreation Ground, Fareham
Seafield Park, Hill Head
Wicor recreation ground, Portchester

8. It is proposed that an area within each site is set aside for the sowing of a wildflower
meadow. The sowing would be undertaken either during Autumn 2013 or Spring 2014
depending on weather conditions. The time of flowering would be during May to
August 2014.
Remember - wild flower seed packets
9. These post card seed packets offer a personal and unique opportunity for community
participation through the sowing of small packets of red poppy seeds entitled
‘Remember’.
10. Their ease of distribution and desirability make them easily marketable and suitable for
sowing in a host of applications including pots, gardens, schools and allotments.
11. The seed packets produced last year as part of the Going Wild project have proved
very popular and offer a low cost option for engaging people whilst developing an
awareness of the importance of wildflowers and supporting wildlife.
12. The artwork for the seed packets will be confirmed by December 2013 with distribution
during Feb 2014 ready for sowing in the spring.
Community involvement
13. There will be a number of opportunities for the community to get involved with some
of the projects listed above which will be carried out in conjunction with the Fareham in
Bloom volunteers.
ARTS AND MUSEUMS – POSSIBLE PROJECTS IN FAREHAM
14. Hampshire County Council Museum and Arts Service will also be engaging the
community in a variety of events throughout Fareham. Although not yet finalised, the
list below provides some initial thoughts on what may be undertaken during 2014.
(a)

A community day to involve the whole community. The day will send Fareham
back to 1914, complete with a conscription station where young people will be
“conscripted” into the Army/Navy. This will involve volunteers undergoing
various tests, then having their photograph taken in their uniform and being
issued with their papers. Shop keepers will be encouraged to dress their local
businesses in 1914 style. It is hoped to involve HMS Collingwood as a key
partner.

The exact date for this event is yet to be decided but it is likely to be a Saturday in late
L&C-130724-r 3 -swo.docx

Page 53

-4July/ early Aug 2014.
(b)

Ashcroft Arts Centre has received £49,000 funding to deliver a project, working
with young people in Fareham and Gosport. The project will see young people
research local stories linked to WW1 and develop a range of responses to these
including films, exhibition materials and workshops. The young people will also
have an immersive experience living in a replica trench for two days.

This project will run from September 2013 – December 2014.
(c)

The outcome of the project will be the production of films, which should be
available for screening in July/August and then again in November. The
exhibition which will form part of the larger exhibition in Westbury Manor and the
workshops will be in Autumn 2014

(d)

There will be an exhibition at Westbury Manor in Autumn 2014, and a variety of
workshops.

15. Officers from both Fareham and Hampshire County Council will be meeting later in
the summer to discuss the projects in more detail.
CIVIC EVENTS
16. It is proposed that on Monday 4 August 2014, the Mayor and Executive Leader will
unveil a commemorative plaque/stone in West Street, Fareham, in memory of all those
who lost their lives, or suffered during WW1. Representatives of HMS Collingwood,
the Armed Forces, local voluntary organisations and the clergy would be invited to
attend and participate.
17. It is suggested that the plaque/stone be laid in the centre of the podium in West Street
as a lasting tribute.
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
18. The table below sets out the projected costs for all projects within this report.
Project

Cost

Trinity Church Open Space
Wildflower meadow

£1000

Rose beds

£1100

Tree planting

£ 900

Seats/benches

£1500

Memorial plaques

£600

QE11 Sites
Wildflower meadows

£3000

Remember
5000 Wildflower seed packets/cards
Commemorative Event

£2500
£2000

Total cost

£12,600

L&C-130724-r 3 -swo.docx

Page 54

-5-

19. An application is currently being prepared to apply to the Heritage Lottery Fund for a
grant from the “First World War: then and now” fund, to go towards the cost of the
projects. At the current time it is unknown as to whether an application will be
successful.
RISK ASSESSMENT
20. There are no significant risk considerations in relation to this report.
CONCLUSION
21. Members are requested to support the proposals outlined in the report and request
that the Executive considers the report and allocates the funding required to
implement all proposals.
Background Papers:
Appendix A – Proposals for the WW1Centenary and D Day 70th Anniversary celebrations
Appendix B – Wildflower Seed Packet Artwork
Reference Papers:

Enquiries:
For further information on this report please contact Sue Woodbridge, Public and Open
Spaces Manager (Ext 4546 )

L&C-130724-r 3 -swo.docx

Page 55

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 56

APPENDIX A

2104 Commemorations – WW1 Centenary & D Day 70th Anniversary
PROJECT TITLE: Wild Flower Meadow and Commemorative Rose Beds
LOCATION: Trinity Church Open Space
DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT:
1. Wild Flower Meadow
•
•
•

Wildflower meadow sown to encourage wildlife
Approx. 300 square metres
Mix to include red poppies

2. Commemorative Rose Beds
•
•
•

Permanent ‘Remembrance’ Rose beds
Planting of 2 x100 red roses ( variety Red Velvet )
Plaque if required

TIMESCALES:
Cultivation and sowing of wild flower seed by private contractor/volunteers during October
2013
Rose beds prepared and planted by Grounds Maintenance operatives during November
2013.
Page 57

APPENDIX A

2104 Commemorations – WW1 Centenary & D Day 70th Anniversary
PERIOD OF INTEREST:
Wild flower meadow - Annually from late May – August
Rose beds - Annually from late May until September
OPPORTUNITIES FOR CELEBRATION THAT COULD BE TIED IN:
•
•
•
•

War Memorial of WW1 is at the front of Holy Trinity Church.
It is likely that a Church service/wreath lying will be held.
Church members/others could be involved with the sowing
Unveiling of a plaque, June to August 2014 when Roses are likely to be in flower.

BUDGET REQUIRED:
Wild Flower Meadow - £1000 to include preparation, seed and sowing
Rose beds - £1100 - to include preparation, plants, materials and planting.
Total - £2100
(Additional wild flower meadows could be prepared and sown at the four QE11 sites
i.e. Wicor Recreation Ground, Seafield Park, Bath lane Recreation Ground, Allotment
Road Recreation Ground. This would be an additional cost of £3000)

Possible additional site improvement at Trinity Church Open Space
3. Tree planting
•
•

The planting of 6 trees with interesting bark
Tree planting undertaken in November 2013 or 2014 (with or without plaques)

4. Seating
•

Installation of two seats, each could have a different plaque on them to
commemorate the two anniversaries. Seats to be installed before June 2014 (with
or without plaques

BUDGET REQUIRED:
Trees - £900 – to include preparation, trees, materials and planting
Seating x 2 - £1500
Provision of two memorial plaques (on seating or in planting) - £600
Total: £3000

Page 58

APPENDIX A

2104 Commemorations – WW1 Centenary & D Day 70th Anniversary

PROJECT TITLE: Remember
DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT:
•
•
•

Distribution of post cards with seeds packet for people to sow in their own local
communities.
Personal touch for people to do their own thing providing a good community
engagement opportunity
Unique idea

SUGGESTED DISTRIBUTION:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Schools
Community groups
Council connect station
Gardeners fairs
In Bloom events
Fareham in Bloom Competition entrants
Garden centres

TIMESCALES:
•
•

Artwork and packaging by end of summer 2013
Available for distribution from February 2014

PERIOD OF INTEREST:
Dependent on when sown but from June - September
OPPORTUINITIES FOR PROMOTION:
•
•
•
•

Fareham Today articles
Website
Photo shoots, media release
Schools - children planting the seeds

BUDGET REQUIRED:
£500 for 1000 run. Suggested 5000 run - £2500

Total for all projects £10,600

Page 59

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 60

Remember

FAREHAM
BORO UGH COUNCIL

A Time to Remember
World War 1 Centenary and D Day 70th Anniversary
Remember those special to you and help nature to bloom
by planting these nectar and pollen rich wild flower seeds
that will encourage butterflies moths, bees and hoverflies
into your garden whilst creating a blaze of summer colour.

X

This mix of both Long Headed and Corn Poppies can
easily be grown in any sunny position, container or
border to create a stunning rich red display.
Simply sow the seeds onto an area of prepared and raked
soil or in tubs and containers. Sprinkle the seeds evenly,
water well and in around 12 weeks you will see your
first blooms.
At the end of the summer either collect and thoroughly
dry the ripe seed Ready to re-sow the following season or
allow the seed to fall onto the ground, then the following
season rake the area over to trigger the germination again.

Remember… by Filling Fareham with Flowers

• Seed sufficient for one square metre
• Can be sown in spring or early autumn
• Do not scatter in the countryside
• Caution – harmful if eaten!
• Contains: Long Headed Poppy
and Corn Poppy

Fareham in Bloom in part is the Bringing People and Parks Together initiative organised by Fareham Borough Council in partnership with the Fareham in Bloom
coordinators who work voluntarily to raise awareness and encourage participation in parks and green spaces throughout Fareham through a programme of
events projects and competitions. Further information and the events programme can be found at www.fareham.gov.uk/parks Tel: 01329 236100

Page 61

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 62

Agenda Item 10

Report to
Leisure and Community Policy
Development and Review Panel
Date

24 July 2013

Report of:

Director of Community

Subject:

REVIEW OF THE WORK PROGRAMME FOR 2013/14

SUMMARY
The Work Programme for 2013/14 was reviewed and agreed by the Panel at
its last meeting on 15 May 2013.

RECOMMENDATION

Members are now invited to further review the Work Programme for the year
2013/14.

L&C-130724-r01-mge.docx

Page 63

-2-

INTRODUCTION
1.

At the meeting of the Panel on 15 May 2013, members reviewed and agreed the
Panel's Work Programme for 2013/14. Members are now further invited to
review the work programme.
REVISIONS TO THE WORK PROGRAMME

2.

Since the last meeting the work programme has been updated as follows:(i) a report informing members on the proposals to commemorate the centenary of
WW1 and the 70th anniversary of D Day has been added to the work programme
for this meeting;
(ii) the former unallocated item entitled update on the future of Westbury Manor
Museum has been added to the work programme for the meeting on 6 November
2013; and
(iii) the former unallocated item entitled Review of Community Buildings - results of
Titchfield CATS Area Needs Assessment has been added to the work programme
for the meeting on 15 January 2014.
RISK ASSESSMENT

3.

There are no significant risk considerations in relation to this report.
CONCLUSION

4.

The Panel is now invited to endorse the programme of items as shown in
Appendix A, which incorporates the revisions to the work programme set out in
paragraph 2 above.

Appendix A Leisure & Community Policy Development and Review Panel
Work Programme for 2013/14
Background Papers:
None.
Reference Papers:
Leisure and Community Policy Development and Review Panel - 15 May 2013
Minute 7.

Enquiries:
For further information on this report please contact Martyn George, Director of
Community (Ext 4400 )
L&C-130724-r01-mge.docx

Page 64

-3-

APPENDIX A
WORK PROGRAMME FOR 2013/14 - LEISURE AND COMMUNITY POLICY
DEVELOPMENT AND REVIEW PANEL
MEETING DATES FOR 2013/14*

ITEMS

15 May 2013

Introduction to the role of the Panel
• Introduction to Key Staff
• Achievements 2012/13
• Challenges and Priorities for
2013/14
• Review of the work programme for
2013/14

24 July 2013

• Review of the work programme
2013/14
• Presentation - Countryside Sites
Nature Conservation
• Leisure Strategy Review
• Portchester MUGA - Results of
Consultation
• Proposals to Commemorate the
Centenary of WW1and the 70th
Anniversary of D Day

4 September 2013

• Review of the work programme
2013/14
• Open Spaces Improvement
Programme
• Community Action Fareham SLA
Review
• Proposals for Bath Lane
Recreation Ground

6 November 2013

• Review of the work programme
2013/14
• Ferneham Hall Performance
Review
• Update on the future of Westbury
Manor Museum.

L&C-130724-r01-mge.docx

Page 65

-415 January 2014

• Preliminary overall review of work
programme 2013/14 and draft
2014/15
• Fareham Savers Credit Union
Review
• Review of Community Buildings results of Titchfield CATS Area
Needs Assessment

5 March 2014

• Final review of work programme
for 2013/14 and draft for 2014/15
• Fareham Leisure Centre
Performance Review

Unallocated Item:
(i) Hampshire County Council review of Community Sector Funding;

L&C-130724-r01-mge.docx

Page 66

